AGENDA

REGULAR MEETING OF THE PARCHMENT CITY COMMISSION
April 17, 2023
7P.M.

Parchment City Commission
Mayor Robert D. Britigan Il

Vice Mayor Thomas Jordan Commissioner Holly Evans

Commissioner Tammy Cooper Commissioner Robin Madaras

Commissioner Doug Fooy Commissioner Michael Conner
Officers '

City Manager Nancy R. Stoddard

City Attorney Robert Soltis

City Treasurer/Clerk Shannon Stutz
1. Call to Order

2. Pledge of Allegiance
3. Roll Call

4, Approval of Minutes
From the City Commission Meeting of April 3, 2023

5. Additions/Changes to the Agenda - Approval

6. Citizen Comments — Items ON the Agenda
If you wish to comment regarding items ON the agenda, please follow the format below:
o State your name and address for the records
o You are allowed up to 5 minutes for your comments
» Please let us know if you require special accommodations by notifying the Clerk



o Reminder: You will be making a statement, without discussion from the
Commission. You are always welcome to make an appointment with the City
Manager to further discuss your comments.

7. Consent Agenda
Items on the consent agenda will be dealt with one vote by the City Commission
unless a Commissioner requests an item be dealt with individually.

Motion to RECEIVE OR APPROVE as indicated:
1. Warrant No. 1488 — action
ii. 2023 March Credit Card Report — action
iii. 2023 March Financial Statemerit - receive
iv. KABA March 2023 Monthly Report — receive
v. KATS March 9, 2023 Technical Committee Minutes - receive

8. Unfinished Busingss

9. New Business
A. Scottish Festival Contract — action
B. TKPD Report, Lt. Scott Jackson — receive

10. Citizen Comments — Items ON or OFF the Agenda
Persons wishing to comment on items that are on/off the agenda are instructed to
Please follow the same format as Citizen Comments for items on the agenda.

11. Mayor and Commissioner Comments

12. City Manager Comments

13. Adjournment



10.

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE PARCHMENT CITY COMMISSION HELD ON
MONDAY APRIL 3, 2023.

Call to order

Mayor Britigan called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. then led everyone in the Pledge of Allegiance.

Roll Call.

Present: Mayor Britigan, Vice Mayor Jordan, Commissioners Cooper, Conner, Evans, Fooy, and Madaras, City
Manager Stoddard, Treasurer/Clerk Stutz.

Absent: None.

Minutes

Moved by Commissioner Madaras, supported by Vice Mayor Jordan to approve the minutes of the March 20, 2023 Regular
meeting. Comumissioner Fooy abstained. Metion Carried.

Additions or changes to the agenda.
None. Moved by Commissioner Evans supported by Vice Mayor Jordan to approve the agenda as presented. Motion
Carried.

Citizen Comments — Items ON the Agenda

None.
Consent Agenda
A, Questions by Commissioners were answered regarding specific items. Moved by Commissioner Cooper, supported

by Commissioner Madaras to receive the consent agenda items. Motion Carried.

Unfinished Business
None,

New Business

A, Parks and Recreation Committee, “Put your town on the map”/Paper Trail project — action. Cheryl Lyon-Jenness,
294 Glendale and member of the Parks and Rec Committee, explained the origin of this grant opportunity, and how the city
could benefit from it. After outlining the main idea, and noting that the application doesn’t ask for final project details, she
essentially asked the commission for their input and whether they support this project. Some discussion took place, Moved by
Commissioner Madaras, supported by Commissioner Fooy, to support the Parks and Rec Committee’s Paper Trail project.
Roll call was as follows:

Ayes: Britigan, Conner, Cooper, Evans, Fooy, Jordan and Madaras.
Nays: None.
Absent: Norne.
Abstain: None.

Motion Carried 7-0.

B. Chicken Permit Request - action. Mayor Britigan said these permits are normally approved administratively at City
Hall, but this is before the commission as a point of emphasis to the process. City Manager Stoddard agreed, adding that this
permit request is in alignment with the city’s chicken ordinance, and it’s a good reminder to all residents how to comply.
Violations are civil infractions to be enforced by KTPD. Moved by Commissioner Cooper, supported by Commissioner
Conner to approve the West family chicken permit. Motion Carried.

C. Budget Presentation, City Manager Stoddard - receive. Mayor Britigan began by saying this is the second step in our
budget process. City Manager Stoddard noted that this is just a first look at the budget, and it includes many of the concerns
commissioners brought to the work session in February. She then went over highlights in each fund, and asked
commissioners to bring their guestions to the next meeting,

Citizen Comments |
None.

Mayor and Commissioner Comments

Commissioner Cooper said she’s grateful for the work the Parks and Rec committee has been doing, looking into grants, etc.
adding it’s ““a thankless job”, She said it’s a great start for future generations, and is excited about the possibility of an art
installation.



Minutes of the April 3, 2023 City of Parchment Commission Page 2 of 2

11.

12,

Commissioner Conner asked about a house on Parchmount that seems to be running a car repair out of their home.

Commissioner Fooy noted a concern with the lack of activity regarding the house at the corner of Wilson and Thomas, saying
he’s discouraged. He then said he will be missing a couple meetings due to surgery he is having.

City Manager Comments/Reports

City Manager Stoddard reported that the house Commissioner Fooy asked about is due in court this week, adding that it can
take a long time for these things to move forward. She mentioned having a lone garage on the property doesn’t align with our
ordinances, sc it will need to be removed. She then invited anyone who has questions or concems to call and discuss them
with her.

Adjournment
There being no further business to come before the Commission, it was moved by Commissioner Cooper and supported by
all to adjourn the meeting at 7:47 p.m,

Shannon Stutz, City Clerk



City of Parchment
Check Register Report
Warrant 1488

Check Chack Date Vendor Name Description Amount
37512 04/14/2023  CLAUDIA BRITIGAN PLAYSCRIPTS / YOUTH SHOW 2023 517.14
37513 04/14/2023 COMPANION LIFE LIFE & AD&D INS - APRIL LIFC3712 66.50
37514 04/14/2023  CONSUMERS ENERGY ACCT #: 1704 5509 CITY HALL 6,260.95
37515 04/14/2023 VOID 0.00
37516 04/14/2023  vOID 0.00
37517 04/14/2023  CORPORATE TECHNOLOGIES LLC MALWARE KITS 83.04
37518 04/14/2023 ENGINEERED FROTECTION SYSTEMS WATER TREATMENT PLANT - 05/01 TC 07/31,/2 185.84
37519 04/14/2023  FORD, KRIEKARD, SOLTIS & WISE GENERAL MATTERS - MARCH 918.75
37520 04/14/2023  KALAMAZOQ AREA BUILDING AUTHOR PROPERTY MAINT - 103 DEVON APT C4 100.00
37521 04/14/2023 KALAMAZOO CITY TREASURER CITY WATER/SEWER - 01/04 TO 03/31/23 327.10
37522 04/14/2023  KALAMAZOO CO. ROAD COMMISSION TRAFFIC SIGNAL MAINT & ENERGY USE - JAN 245.74
37523 04/14/2023 KALAMAZOO COUNTY CLERK NOVEMBER 8, 2022 - GENERAL ELECTION 12093
37524 04/14/2023 KALAMAZOO DIL CO. FUEL CHARGES 03/15 TO 03/31/23 121.33
37525 04/14/2023  KNIGHT OF COLUMBUS COUNCIL 1616 BINGO - LICENSE FEE 25.00
37526 04/14/2023 MLIVE MEBIA GROUP NOTICE OF BUDGET HEARING 45,57
37527 04/14/2023 NANCY STODDARD ZOOM - ONLINE MEEING PLATFORM 43,01
37528 04/14/2023 PREIN & NEWHOF COMMERCE LANE TRESTLE REMOWVAL & RIVERBAN 4,248.00
USDA $2073.00, Trestle $1920.00, Stormwater 5255.00
37528 04/14/2023  PURITY CYLINDER GASES, INC. QUARTERLY CYLINDER RENTAL 84.70
37530 04/14/2023 REPUBLIC SERVICES #24% CITY WIBE PICKUP - APRIL 10,197.14
37531 04/14/2023  SBIS EMPLOYEE INS - MAY 2023 12,258.49
37532 04/14/2023 SEVERANCE ELECTRIC CO INC TRAFFIC SIGNAL MAINT ~ MARCH 2023 126.00
37533 04/14/2023 SHANNCN STUTZ MILEAGE - JAN, FEB, MARCH 98.77
37534 04/14/2023 SHANNON STUTZ INS DED REIMB - DECEMBER 242,00
37535 04/14/2023 SIGNCRAFTERS 2 PARCHMENT PUBLIC WORKS SIGNS 600.00
37536 04/14/2023  THE FOUNTAINS BINGO DEPOSIT 2024 800.00
37537 04/14/2023 THRUN LAW FIRM P.C. USDA LOAN - MARCH 36.00



Page 2 of 4

Account Number: X300 X000 XXX 1546
Statement Closing Date: 03/27/23

s

.

Name and Aceount Number Cradit Limit Credits Purchases Cash Advances Total Actlvity
JIM DUBY

3OO XXX XXKK 1892 $3,000 $0.00 $1.180.00 $0.00 $1,188.00
CAMRON J BOEKHGOVEN

XXX XXX 9114 $3,000 $0.00 $504.82 $0.00 $504.62
NANCY R 8TODDARD

00RO 7241 $5,000 $0.00 $485.21 $0.00 $495.21
SHANNON 8TUTZ

YOO XN XXX 9125 $5,000 30.00 $1,672.06 $0.00 $1,572.05

PHIL WOLTHUIS Credlt Limlt Credits Purchases Cash Advances Total Activity
KUK IO XKXK 1793 $5,000 $0.00 $1.744.71 $0.00 $1,744.71
Post Date Tran Date  Referance Number Transaction Description VCN Amount
03/07 03/06 02308373066000598018289 TRAGTOR SUPPLY #1272 KALAMAZOO MI $95.96
03/185 3/14 7550059307390001 1500034 MARTIN SPRING & DRIVE KALAMAZOO M! $315.25
03/22 03721 85454813080200018519826 CLEAN EARTH ENVIRONMEN KALAMAZOO MI $1,333.50
BILL CAHILL Credit Limit Credits Purchases Cash Advances Total Activity
KK XX XXX 1801 $5.000 $0.00 $417.80 $0.00 $417.90
Post Date Tran Date  Reference Number Transaction Description VCN Amount
0228 02127 55480773054191000570541 FARM & FLEET OF PORTAG PORTAGE M| $157.93
03/07 03/06 02305373066000668018372 TRACTOR SUPPLY #1272 KALAMAZGCO M| $179.99
03/22 03/21 02305373081000583703708 TRACTOR SUPPLY #1272 KALAMAZQO M! $32,.98
I JIM DUBY Credit Limit Credits Purchases Cash Advances Total Actlvity
KK XXXX XXX 1882 $3.000 $0.00 $1,189.00 $0.00 $1,189.00
Post Date Tran Date  Reference Numbar Transactlon Description VCN Amount
02/28 02/27 55446413056207566100017 MILLASSIST SERVICES IN 2696923211 MI $1,189.00
CAMRON J BCEKHOVEN Credit Limit Credits Purchases Cash Advances Total Activity
KK XXX XXXX 9114 33,000 $0.00 $504 62 $0.0¢ $504.62
Post Date Tran Date  Reference Number T lon Descriptlon VCN Amount
43/01 o227 7520739305990001460004 3 WEST MICHIGAN INTERNAT GRAND RAPIDS M| $101,83
93/02 03/01 55480773051191000673673 FARM & FLEET OF PORTAG PORTAGE MI $37.49
0314 03113 02305373073060608478112 TRACTOR SUPPLY #1272 KALAMAZOO M| $10.9
37 03/15 05436843075200053044364 LAKELAND ASPHALT CORPO 269-964-1720 M| $120.51
q3/23 03/22 75217803082240000085940 ERWARDS INDUSTRIAL SAL KALAMAZOO Mi $160.71
a3/27 03/24 02305373084100187260332 MENARDS KALAMAZOQ EAST COMSTOCK TOWN M] $73.18
NANCY R STODDARD Credit Limit Credits Purchases Cash Advances Total Activity
OO KHHK XHXK 7241 $5,000 $0.00 $485.21 $0.00 $495.21
Post Date Tran Date  Reference Number Transaction Description VCN Amount
a3/01 02/28 5550036305057 2642558574 MARANA GROUP 8006533121 M| 2154.92
03/09 03/08 55600363067872912575514 MARANA GROUP 8006533121 M! 340.29

{transactions continued on next page)

00000000 - 004331 - 0001 - 0002 - 2



Page 3 of 4

Account Number: XXXX )X XXXX 1546
Statement Closing Date; 03/27/23

SHANNON STUTZ Credit Limit Credits Purchases Cash Advances Totai Activity
OO XXX XXX 9125 55,000 $0.00 $1,572.05 $0.00 $1.572.05
Post Date Tran Date  Reference Number Transaction Description VCN Amount
02/28 02/28 55432863059206244742652 SPECTRUM 886-707-7328 MO $112.98
03/06 03/03 856140513063900010600038 CORNERSTCONE OFFICE 5YS AVALENCE@CORN Mi §232.74
03/08 0307 02306373067000608529655 USP3 PO 2540110002 KALAMAZGO M| $28.75
03/08 Q3/07 827111630860000087831648 PIXELVINE FREEPCRT M| $80.75
03/13 a3/11 05410183071105092589529 QUILL CORPORATION 800-982-3400 SC $221,32
03/14 03/13 82711163072000007744 387 PIXELVINE FREEPCRT MI $75.00
03/18 03/16 6271291307660000057 1417 ORPORATE TECHNOLOGIES 7018034056 MN $438,17
03/24 03/23 65187423083000001348681 CITY OF KALAMAZOO 82538318064 M| $25.9
03724 03723 65187423083000001348673 GITY OF KALAMAZOQ 88858816064 Mi $40.35
03/24 03/23 65187423083000001348699 CITY OF KALAMAZOO 8888216064 M| $68.99
03724 03/23 65187423083000001348707 CITY QF KALAMAZOQ 8888816064 M| $81.11
03/27 03/26 55432863085203855450848 SPECTRUM 855-707-7328 MO $149.97




¥6'90T  (00°08%} 000 00" 08% ‘CT 00°008°6 JTISUSY JUSWSITI®Y YHOI 000 F2L-002-T0T
G919 0F 026 IT €8T 09°6L% ‘T 00°00%°'2 3IeDTPSH 000" 22L-002-T0T
0070 00" 00L 000 000 007004 uoT3iesuaduio) §,I9}IOM Q007 02L-002-T0T
T0"evT (LB T0%’8) LO"S68°S LB T09'8C 00700002 ucTsuagd 000 8TL-002-TOT
957927  (¥g'2o0’T) 0o o ¥E£°290°S 06°000°'F STqTIONPsJ S0UBAINSUT TOQ $TL-00Z-TOT
28°29 Z6°¥8Z ST ZI1 9%L’¥ B0 SIL'CY 007000739 2DURANSUT SFTT/TEITASOH 000°8T4L-002-T0T
5209 EFELT P TLT¥G9 LG 979 00°005°0T Aatanoesg TeTOoCS 0007 5T1L-002-TOT
L9729 OF"6T6 LT 00°00T ¥ 097080 '0€ 00°0C0 8% SWTL 3xBd - [[0TAERd 000" €6L-002-T0T
ST L9 T6°66£°0% 0 2r9 '8 60°009°Z8 00 000’EzT QUWITL TThd - TIOFARG 000" Z04L-00Z2-T0T
UOTIEIASTUTWRY - 00z 2d=a
5828 99°75%°3 TO'L9L'T PETSPE'ST 007 008°7¢E SATIRTSTEST - 001 adsa [e3olr
octo 00°00€ 0070 Q"o 00 00€ SNOAUBRTTaDSTH 0007 S56-00T-TOT
¥FCLEZ S1°879°¢ 09°¥89 S8 TLE'T 00°000°s putysTTang ¥ burijurag 0007 006-00T-TOT
0% T4 00°2ZLS 0070 00°8ZF'T 00700072 TWOTINYTEIUO) BUTTIRSSEH 100°088-00T-10T
06°06 00°S6H 00 5L 00 50% 00700071 uoTjoword A2 TUTURIOD 000" 088-00T-T0T
00"e0T  {00°5L) 000 00" 5L Q00 BuTuTRIL 3 S£93M1TISUT 000 098-00T-T0T
GL 0E 8L*BED'T 000 ZC 19¥ 00°005°T seryl ¥ sdIysIsquel 000 0E8-00T-TO0T
POTOTT  (00°LLZ'T) 05 19€ 00" LLE'ET 007000721 TAd®g [ENIORIJUCD/TRUOTIESSSIOI] 000°008-00T-T0T
€oreor (1T 12} 00'0 12 12L 00°o0L ser1ddng bButjwasado 000°CFL-DOT-TOT
8T'GE F9 62T IL°8 987 0L Q0 00€ BITDTPSH 000" Z2L-00T-TOT
0070 00" 052 000 0070 00°05¢ uoTjesusduio) s, I93I0M 000" 0ZL-00T-TOT
8L GE 0% 695 0Z"LE 0L700€ 00" 058 AQTINDDE TRIVOE 000" STL-00T-TOT
69°TOT  {QO-SET) 00°009 00"SET’8 000008 SWTL 3Ied — TToIARd 000 £0L-00T-T0T
satieleTher - 00T 3dsg
saany rpuadxyg
VE"F8 L0960 °STE $F B80S ‘20E €6°LZ0L69T R AR A SAANEARY TWLOL
FE RS L0960 °5TE GF"80S 'Z0€E £6°LT0LED T 00 ¥ET’2I0‘2 000 23dsa Te3OL
0G 00T (L1 1) 00°¢C LT'T 0070 4I0Ug ® I8A0Q s3Tsodsg 000°969-000-T0T
6E°8F 66 98L72 000 I0°€ET192 00 00F°S geoanog buTouruld Iaglo 000" 569-000-T0T
69789 FE-96L7S Q00 99°£09 ' TT 00°00F ‘LT STOSUR [0S TH 000" ¥69-000-T0T
00 00T 000 00°000°012 00°000°0TZ 000007012 PESUISAQ 10T JUSWSSITCUITON 0007 089-000-T0T
E9°TT 0Z°590% 0£ 9% 08°FES 00 009’7 SIUBWESIAUL UC 383A3JUT 000" ¥99-000-T0T
8T 8¢ 89989 ¥ £2°9LC ZETE98’'¢ 00°00S°L SOUTA DTFIRAL 000°299-000~T0T
000 007008 000 0o 0 00005 PeIopUsyd S9DTAISS 20T sabIeyd 000" 2E9-000-TOT
98" %8 00°985°0¢ 000 00 FIFP TLT 00°'000 ‘202 XeL §3TRE ©3e3l§ D00 $L5—000-TOT
9z°2% 0Z 688720C 0070 08 0TT'Z22 00°000°SZ¥ JueTd IS3eM - JURIDH 21BLG 000 ¥H#5-000-TOT
00°00T 000 00" 2519 00°z5179 00°2ST'9 SQURAD RIS 000" TF5-000-TOT
00°00T (BT LPO'FF) FT 606791 FTULEO‘FF 00°0 s1URID 97185 000 0¥5-000-TOT
00°00T 00°0 00 ZLI E£ZT 00" ZLT'EE 00" ZLT ET Butpung TeI2ped IS9Yl0 000°825-000~T0T
£GT00T  ({TT E€LL) 9z EFLGY TT ELL9ET 00" 000 “9€T SUCTIDITTOD SIERM DPTTOS 000" ?SP-000~TOT
00"0 0o ooL’e 00°0 000 00°00L‘2 $99d UOTIEaIDRY 000°€5%-000-T0T
8" LY 9et1Z1’s 000 F9 LG0T 00°00L7ST §09d UOTSTASTYRD 000°Z5%-000-E0T
€7 g 96°GE9°TT 00597 FO%#9£°¢E 00" 000°sT 837 PuUBR 9SUSOTT 000" I5%~-000-T0T
91" 66 0Z°L¥Z LET9FT 08725062 00°00€ 62 SO9F UOTIDBTTOD 4T 000" 8F¥~-000-T0T
gy z0T  (95°2L) ST°86¢ 95 ZL0E 00000 ‘s gaxe] U0 AjTEusg 000 SEP-000-TOT
GG LE 92698798 00°0 FLTOET ES 00000 “0FT XBJ, SIRUS e3ls AJTUNURIOD TEBDOT] 00 TFY-000-TOT
£9°I10T (¥B°GE) 000 8 5£2°2 00 00Z'Z SOTITTTICRI TETIFSNPUL - SIXBJ 000" S0%-000-TOT
1L'66 0L 16172 000 0£"80EFIL 00°005'99L anusARY XBJ 000" F0F—000-T0T
oo0 3d=a
SOTUDAN]
aMnd TeEINgS - TOT PUnd
agsn (TYHMONAY) TYHION (ASVAEDHA) FTSVIAEDNI  {TVRMONAY} TYRMON I3900d QHANIWNT NOILIIgoSHd FIIHON 1D
1909 % AINETIL £20Z/1£/€0 HINOH CZOEZ/TE/CO £7-2202

ATHYIIVAY

ZT/1 iobeg

H0d ALIAILDY

HINV'TYd LXK

£20C/TE/€0 DNIANE JOTI¥dd

LNAWNHYEYd J0 ALID d04 Id0ddd TUNLIANIIXE ONY HANHAHY

Juswyoieg :dd
ggg 1I!9s8()

Hd S0:T0 £202/21/F0



000 00°009°¢g 000 000 007009 ‘¢ ucTiesusdmwo) S, IS3I0M 000" 0ZL-0FF-T0T
Y2 LS TL FFLLT Z22°580°G 62 GGLET 00005 'T¥ UOTSUad 000 BTL-0FF-T0T
05729 007006 000 00°C0S°T 00°00%°Z 81qTIoNEaJ SOURINSUT 100 9TL-0FP-TOT
61 EL T6 PEL TT £F 5057 60°502°2¢E 007000 'F¥ soueINSUIl SITT/Te3ITASOH 000 9TL-0%P-T0T
10°€6 95 Q%% 65 E6G FET658°S 00°00E‘9 Ajtanoeg TeTDOS 000 GTL-0FF-T0T
LETTL S¥ Z0Z '6¢ LY 1%Z°L SSULELTL 0070007201 sWTIL IInd - TTOoIAed 000" Z0L-0FP-TOT
S80TAIRE OTTUNd - QF¢ 3d2g
65799 AR A ) L1689 °LT 81°6L6 18 00°00L7EZT 2ITd - 9££ 3deg T=30%
£5°v¢ 00°0ZE’'TT 000 007089 ‘¢ 00°000°sT Tettden 000" 0L6-2E€E-TOT
o0 007000701 000 00°0 00000 70T sI03sRajuOD JuUTeH ® Itedey 000" 0E6-2EE-TOT
7069 18°5¢€8 95 ¥0E 6T 7981 00°00L'2 SSTITTTIN 000°026-9€€-T0T
60°L0T (00" 266) 000 007266 °‘FT 007000 “%T spuog 3 SouURINSUI Q00 0T6-2EE-TOT
T1°L9 96 18L°T 197659 Y 818’2 00002 % SUCTIED TUNIOS 000" 058-9EE-TOT
06718 85°066°2T 00szL'9T ZF"BF0 LS 00°0C0 ‘0L TAZBG TENIDEAJUCD/TRUOTSEDFOIJ 000" Q08-9EE£-T0T
0070 00 00T 0070 000 00°00T set1ddng A3ezeg 000°08L-9£E£~T0T
SZ°0FT (5P z0w) 0070 1 AV A 00°000°T sorTddns sourusjurel 3 ITedey 000" GLL-9CE-T0T
L8791 L T1E8 o0 898971 007000t ITO % SUTTOSEDH 000" 9¥%L-9€E-10T
00°0 00°00T’S 0o o 00" 0 06°00T°S gaT1ddng butiexsdg 000" 0FL-9€E-TO0T
aIta - 9g¢ adeqa
91°€8 BE 00% ‘5L 0L PTECTT 29 ETIEZLE 00 FIL LEY 20TTCd - 0f 3ded Telol
oo ofc} 00 69€ €4 0S'E50°0TT 00 5PB 99¢ 00 PIZ 0¥ ‘ATS§ TRNIORAIUOD/TRUOTISSRIOI] 000" 008-006-T0T
99 €L veteg 09°TT 99°¢L 00 00T SIBDTPIN 000 ZZL-00E-T0T
6% 26 p0° 582 09°6F 96 FIE 007009 Ajtzuseg [eIoog 000 STL-Q0E-TOT
TL ¥ 00°0ZLT 00008 00 080°S 00°008°9 BWTI 3aeg - TTeIARd 000" £0L~00E-TAT
201T0d - 00f 3ds(
£T 2% SLUC06 %L 06 290°T GZ°9680T 00°0087G2 sentadsg TeBeT — pTz 2dsg Te3OL
£6°8T 00" S¥6 ‘L 00°SLE 00°558°T 00700876 SI813EN S0T[0d-ASUI013¥Y 060" Z08-0T2-T0T
16796 SL"8G6'9 05°L88 GZ IF0’6 007000791 Teiduay - Asuiolny 000°T08-0TZ-TOT
sanTagsg TeEeT - 017 1deqg
£9°L8 FOTFEC LY FGTLTO ‘8% 9€"L85“FEE 00"ZZ8 T8¢ UOTIBILSTUTWUPY - (0g 3deg TB30L
T0°T0T  (00°0G2) 000 0070580 °52 007008 %2 te3tded 000" 0L6-002-T0T
00°00T (I6°082) 86°21 16°08¢ 00°0 STORUE[SDSTIH 000" 556-002-T0T
9L°zoz (v 1E0'E) 000 ZFI86°G 00°056°2 SI030BIUOD " QUTRH ® Itedsy 000" 0£6-002-T0T
0L"68 0T EGF 0Z 166 067976 '€ 00007 ¥ SSTITTTAN 000°026-002-T0T
£9°60T  (00°00F) 00°0 00008 °L 00°00T ‘L SpuUOg ® SOURINSUT 000°0T6-002-T0T
GZ2°95 007648 000 00°SE1°T 00 0002 butystigng % buriutig 000°006-00Z-T0T
ST €0T  (T0°T%) 000 TOTFE’T 00°00E’'T BUTUTERIL § S9INITISUT 000°098-002-T0T
8£°96 0z %92 ZET09T'T 08"GED L 00" 00E ‘L SUCTIES TUNIMIO] 000°058-002-T0T
818 0s°€ee GS-LEb 06°9L6 00002t seng 3 sATYSISQURR 000 0E8B-002-T0T
£L°08 Z9T0£8°T Z0"ZEE BET699 "L 000056 sedTAZag Ioindue] 000" 508-002-%0T
05 T8z (€6°2L9 '¥E) 6t°9LZ'0€ ZETRFG LG 0028’2z *ATSg TEN3OBIZUGCH/IPUOCTSSDI0IS 000" 008-002-10T
L97FT CO'THL'T 00°0 L6 T LOE 00 001’2 goTTddng soueusjurel % atrzdsy 000°5LL-002-T0T
L09%z  (EF-126°2) L6 6GES Er Tee ¥ 00 000’z so1Tddng buriexadp 0007 0¥L-002-TOT
20" G¥ €0 0FE ‘W 00°008 LB76S5°E 00006 "4 abejsog 000 0£L-002-TOT
saInlTpuadxi
aNad TYENTS - 10T pund
adasn (TYWHONEY) THIHEON (ISYEYOEA) HASYIMONTI  ("IYWEONDY) TYIRION LA9and qIANIRY NOILATHOSHAd EAIRAN 1D
ead % AONVIVE £20Z/1E/£0 HINOW £20Z/TE/E0 £2-2202

HTEYTIVAY

Zi/¢ :abeg

d0d ALTATLOVY

JONYIYY dLXA

£20Z/TE/E0 ONIANA JOI¥dd

LNIWHDEYd J0 ALID ¥Od LU04d¥Y HINILIANHIXY ONY ANNHATE

qusuoaIed igd
ggg 1x9Eqn

Wd SO:T0 £€20C/21/%0



S6°8L Z€°7901Z2% 0£"6£0'622 89°€£0Z°€85'T 0079925002 SAYNLIANIIXT TYIOL
7918 9€ "S55 ‘EE 9E796L7CT FI°F66 '8FT 00°055‘Z8T 2IN3TND 3 UCTIRSIDSY ‘83 Ivd - T6L 3ded T®l0L
0070 00°000°9 00" 0 0o 0000079 Te3tdeD 000 0L6-TSL~-TOT
6Z°9T AV 27 ¥ 000 B6°95L'Y 0o 00z2'6¢ S1010BIqUOD - JUTRY 3 Itedey 000" 0E6-TSL-TOT
80°F0T  (06°6827) TE€°G09 06 68E°L 00°00T L S8T3ITTTIN 000°026-T5L-T0T
00°00T 000 0070 00 00T 4 007001 L Spuog 3 SOURANSUI 000 0T6-E5L-T0T
00°00T (08°2BO'¥T) 0070 08°280°%v¢ 000 ‘AZ®S [EN1DBI3UOD/TRUCISS2IOIJ 000 008-I5L-TO0T
00°0 00" 007% 000 00°0 00 0oF goTTddng Azszes 000 08L-TSL-T0T
T1°8S 00790L7S 00" ¢ 00 ¥6ZL 00 000°ET so71ddng 22URUSIUTRH % Xtedey 000°SLL-TGL-TOT
LOTTE 26 6BVE LT 21T 8070652 00008’z ITC 3 QUTTOSRD 000 9%L-TGL-TOT
9g"£0T  (28-2g) 98768 z8-Z88 007058 B8IRITPOKH 000 CCL-TSL-TOT
000 00°00S°‘¢ 009 0070 007005°¢g uctiesusduo) 5,I9YI0M 000 0CL-TSL-TOT
ST €8 LEFF0 ¥ 69 T0E % €L GG6 6T 00°000°%2 UCTSUJ 000 8TL-TSL-TOT
000 00°00% T 000 00°0 00°00%°T 3TqI3ONPag 9DUBINSUL 100 9TL-TSL-TOT
£0° 0% PLUEEY THT PLITS0'T 92°908'6 00°00% 72 2OURANSUT BFTT/TelTdson 000°9TL-TSL-TO0T
S0°ZO0T  {¥L7SL) LZ P8¢ FLTGLL'E 00°00L‘E AlTInoeg TRIDOE 000 STL-TSL-TOT
L0°FOT {E€-00% '€} 6Z°TSC 9 €007 19 007000765 swtl TInd - IToTAed 000 Z0L-TSL-TOT
SINITND ® U0TI®sIDSY ‘syred - 1si 3deqg
19°¢€9 97 "8LE’'0GT L6206 vL T1ZL'28E 007000 °E1% sesuadxy juead JURTd I23BM - T6G 314920 T?I0L
00" 00T (0O FLT'9%) 000 00" FLT S¥ 00°0 Teitden 000" 0L6-T65-TO0T
00°Q0T  (€E°6TL) 000 €L 6TL 000 sioloedlUC] - JuTeR ¥ Itedey 000" 0£6-T65-T0T
00°00T ($0°968°1) LS 75T FOT968°T 000 S2T3TTTIN 000" 0Z6-T65-T0T
00°00T  {CO°CGOO'T) 000 00"000°T 000 song 3 sATUSISUSH 000" 0E8-T65-T0T
BE"TS L6°8T87002 0070 €0"T8I‘ZIC 00000 ETE TATSG [EN30RAJUC)/TRUCTSSSI0A] 0007008-T65-T0T
00°00T (P£°164) 0F "BH9 FETTISL 000 soTTddng Hurieasdy 000" 0FL-T65-T0T
gosusdxy JUEIs JURTJ ILdeM — Ta5 1dag
5%°98 GE0TTPS G0 688 °SE G5 69E'GFHE 00°08F‘66¢ §90TAIS8 DTIOnd - 0FF 3dsa Tel0L
SZ TIS‘T (00°SZZ°BZ) 00°0 00°5ZZ’'0E 0070002 Te3tde] 000 0LE-0FF-TOT
00°00T (69°96T°¢E) 00°0 69°96T°¢C 00°0 SNORUBTTADSTH 000 S56-0FF-T0T
LF 66 1¥°29 ZL'E09 65TLEL'TT 00008711 sI0loeIAZUC) QUTRR 3 ITedsy 000 0E6—-0FF-TOT
0028 zg'elc’s FET5TFE gL 08L’ee 00°000°62 PutayhTT 38°I3S 000 986-0FF-TOT
Z9°0IT (20°%Z6) PZTFLLT 90°¥7Z9'6 00" 00L’8 SOTILTTIN 000 0E6-0FF-TOT
LB Z6 00" 8Z¥ 0070 00°2LS'S 00 000°9 SpuUOg 3 POUBANSUT 000 0T6—0FF-TOT
000 007005 0070 000 00008 UoTlouoad A3 TUOULECD 000 088-0FF-T0T
000 00°00€ 000 00°0 G0°00%E PUTUTRAL ® S93INITASUT 000" 098-0F¥-T0T
86°28T (Z8°6Z8) 86°6TT Z86€8°'1T 00'000°T SUOTIED TUNILIO) 000 058-0FF-TOT
776G 00°TO¥ 000 00" 66F 00°006 geng 3 sdIysIsquel 000 0EB-0FF-TOT
9¢°TL £Z°658 66" LF LLTOFPTT 00°000°E TejuSy WIOFTUn 000 STB-0FF-TOT
z9°¢8 £9°LLE 0T 520796 LECE8'LG 00°00% '8TT sebreys UcTIBOTTOD USTUYNY 000 0TB-0FF-TOT
£Lt9ge {FETL9E7T) 00700671 FETL9TE 00°000°T TATSE TPRIDRIJUOD/TRUQTISSDI0I] 000 008-0FF-TOT
00670 00008 000 000 007008 soTTddng Ajoges 000 08L-0FF-TOT
TL ¥1T  {ET°LST'T) 6€7°8T1 T ET LSE’S 00°00Z'8 seTTddng o2oususjurel 3 Irvedey 000 GLL-0FF-TOT
L9766T (6% 4BE'F) 09°G60°T 6% G8L S 00" 00F ‘¥ ITO ® SUTTICSED 000" 9%L-0FF-TOT
9L°T LOT95E T [sTey] £6°EF 000082 serrddng burierado 000 0FL-0FF-TO0T
85726 6L 60T £8°8ET TZ 0LE'T 00°08% ‘T SIEDTPOH 000" ZZL-0FPF-T0T
saInyrpusdzy
ANNd TYEENED - TOT pung
dHsn ("TYWHONIY) TYWEON (ESYEIDHT) TSWAMINI ("THREONDY) TYIRHMON LEDANE QHANBRY HOILTIHALSHEA HUHIHNON TD
190d % FONYIYL £Z0C/TE/E0 HINOH £20Z/1E/€0 £Z-TZ0T

ATIVIIVAY

Z1/¢ iabeg

d0d ALIAILDY

AONYTIVE dLA

LNANEOYYd d0

€Z0C/TE/E0 HONIANDT JOIdHEd

ALTID ¥HO4d Ld0dHY HANLIONEdXE ANV JANHAHTH

JusuyoIeg gd
©gg tI9sn

Hd S0:70 €20¢/¢1/70



£L°659°T {(S27996 '90T) ST 697 ‘L GZ FZ8IETT 00785879 STMALIANAIXE ® SANNAATY JI0 LEN
66" 8L zE 290 ‘zew 0EBEC ‘6ET 89°€0Z°'c86°1 00°992°500'2 SHUNLIANIAXE TYLOL
FE T8 LOT960°STE %805 °20¢ £6°LZ0L697T 00" FZT°210°2 SHONIATY TEIOL
IQNQA TYEEANTD ~ T[0T Pund
ONNE TYIANAD — T[0T PUnd
qEsn (TYWEONIY) TYRION (ISVHIDWA) WMSYAIDNT  (TYRMONTY) TYEON LIOANE dTANTHNY NOTLATUDSHT ATEHANN T
19d4g % TINYIVL €202/1E/E0 HINOHW £202/TE/E0 £E~€20T

ITIETIVAY

rAVAY rebeg

H04d ALTATIOY

AONYIYd dLA

£20Z/TE/€0 DNIUNT dOIddEd

LNIHHDEYd A0 ALID ¥04d LYO4HY HINLTANAAXE ANV

ANNHATS

QusuyoIed gd
§85 rIasn
Wd S0:T0 £€20¢/CT/%0



0ot o 00" 000’8 00" o 0070 0070006 3Tes 000" E5L-8LF-20T
20" 9L P8 6EC geto 9T 094 0070007t TI0 % SUITOSED 000 9FL-8LF-20T
169 BLLF 6T TT 1z2°20T 00° 05T SIBDIPOR 000 ZZL-8BLF-20T
00°0 007069 000 000 00059 uotiesusduic] 5,I9ION 000" 02L-8LF~-Z0T
6825 £5°8/6°1 LE"89F Ly 1222 007002 ¥ uoTsusd 000" 8TL-8LF-20Z
00°0 007052 000 000 Qotose BTAIIONPSY SOUBINSUL 100 9TL-8LF-202
88'€5 0£°£86°T 6¢°88¢ 0L'9T1E 2 00008 ¥ soueansul o3T7/Teatdsoq 000°9TL-8LF-Z0T
8L°ZL 0E°"€9T Z8 LY 0L°9EF 00009 AjTINDSg TERIDOG 000" STIL-BLF-Z0C
9z 0L £v gE0’e G6°98L LG 99T L 00 00201 BWIL TTnd - TToIARg 000" Z0L-8LF-E0C
SOURPUSJUTEN Ia1UTM — 8LF Jdea
8L 6% GT"9T9 ‘91 PET098°T G ELF'9T 00'060‘€E $80TAX2§ DOTFFIRIL - 5.7 3dea Te3OL
BE"LY BS ELZ Y 16°2Z8 AR YA - 00°00T’€ET sIojoeIjUoD "JUTRH 3 ITedey 000 0E6-SLF-C0C
(5% 22) ET"T90°€E 9z "ZZS (£1°196) 000052 soTTddng sourusjurel % xtedsy 000°CSLL-GLF-20T
000 007008 00°0 000 00 00s TIC ® SUTTOSES 000 9¥%L-GLF~-Z07
£8°55 00°¢S 98°9 00" L9 00 0eT SIBSTPRH 000 ZZL-SLF-207
00" 0 00°0FS 00°0 00°0 00 0%5 uoTyesuaduion §,I5}ICM 000 0ZL-5L¥-202
LG*SP PO S06°T 9£"1€€E 96" ¥65°T 00°008°¢E UoTSUSd 000" 8TL-GL¥-20T
0gto 00°00¢ 00°0 G0 0 007002 2TqTIONPaJ SDUBINSUT TOO 9TL-5LY-208
LU el ET°0F0°2T Z¥°99T L8665 00°009°¢ aousansul SITT/TelTdsoH 000" 9TL-SLF-Z07T
96 °ES T0°F¥E 92762 66682 00°0€Es Aztanoeg TeToCS 000 STL-SLF-Z0Z
0E"5S 92 66L°E LT TI8Y FLOO0L'E 0005’8 awrr TI0Nd - TToIARg 0007 20L-5LF-T02
S9DTATISS DIFIRIL - GLF 3deg
LB 8% AT BS 0E0'T 59°L06°ET 00°09% ‘8% BOURURUTEH BUTINOY - £9F 3dod [BIOL
00" %9 00-088°2C 00°0 00°02T°S 00°000°8 SIGIDBINUCD*JUTER % IrTedey 000 0E6-£97-20¢
8b LT T0O"899°T 000 66" TE£9 00°00E‘Z goTTddng soususjuTel ? ITedad 000" GLL-£97-202
000 00 00€ 0070 0070 00°00¢ ITO 3 2UIToseEs 000 97L-£9F7-E0C
9905 FT %9 86°9 9869 00° 08T SIBRDTPOH 000 'ETL-£9F7-202
00°0 00 0LS 000 no-e 00°0LS uotjesuaduc) €,a83I0H 000 0ZL-£97-202
IT 6% €6°GL6'T SETLEE LOPZY°T 007009 ¢ UoTSUSg 000 8IL-£9F7-20€
000 oo-ote 000 00°0 o090tz 2TqIIoNpad IDURINSUT 100 9TL-£97-E02
90" 1% 16°6£2'2 SF99T 60°095°T 00°0087°¢ BOUBINSUT 9F T/ T3 TASOH 000'9TL-£9%-202
ET TS aL"89%C 08°6¢Z 7Z°18E 00° 055 A3TInoes TRIDOS 000" 6TL-£9F7-20C
8E°1S 09 GLE'Y T0°06F 0% 529°% 00°000 6 2wTL TInd - TIoIAeg 000 Z0L-£97-20C
BOURPUSIUTERH SUTINOY ~ £9% Jdag
97 L8 0070G60°ST 000 007056 “#0T 00°000°02T ucTIOoNIISUo]d - T5F 3dag Tejon
9F ' LB 00°050°ST 00°0 007056 “F0T 00000 02T SI03DRIJUOD " JUTEH §F ITedsy 000" 0£6-TGF-Z0T
UOTIITIARSUOD - TGF 3d=2q
seIniTpuadxy
12 GL 66" ZLT P ZEEILWT TO"LZ0'FET 00°00Z ‘8LT SANNIATT TYLOL
1254 66°2LT '¥F TETB9LFL TO LEO‘BET 00'00Z‘8LT 000 adsg TeIOL
1264 66 CLL ¥7F CETE9L VT T0"LZ0'%ET 00°002'8LT 16 30¥ - S3UBIH =23e1G 000°9¥%¥5-000-202
000 3deg
SoUaNADT]
ANQA LAZILS d00VH - Z0Z PUmd
agasn (IYEMONIY) "TYREON (MSYII0Fqd) HESVIIONT (TYIIONAY) TYRION LADO0Yd THONARNY NOIILdITHOSHO HHIWAON T9
Ioad % ADNTIVE €Z0Z/TE/E€0 HINOW £Z0T/IE/ED £7-2202
HTIYTIVAY HOd ALIAILOY HONVIYd dLA

ZT/8

robed

£Z0¢/TE/E0 ONIONA dor¥dd

LNHRHDHEYd 40 ALID Y04 LYOdEY MUALTANEAXHE ONY HONTATT

JuswmuDIBg dd
S85 88N

Wd S0:T0 £20¢/ZT/%0



GG LY (PG 0TZ'8T) (20 SEF'OT) (87606 7LE) (00°0ZT'9S) SAVNLIANTIXT ® SAONIATY JAQ IIN

8E°E4, £5°€8£7E9 VETT0Z'SE LY 9E6 ' TLT 00" 0ZE ‘¥EE SEINIIANAdXA 'TYLOL
Tz SL 66°CLT ¥ ZETGYL'TT IO LEOPET 00°00Z8LT SHANIATE TYLOL
PONQd IHTELS GO0YW - Z0Z Pung

geteL £5'£8E°29 vE°F0Z'Se L% 96 ' TLT G0 DzE‘pEL SEINLIANEIRT TEIOL
£Z°S0T  (9T°T8T°'T) 69°0TZ°02 9717109 'cx 00" 0ev ‘ez UCTIRIISTUTURY - Z8F 1dad TeI0L
00°00T 00°0 00°000°0% 007 000'0Z 00°000°0Z PESUTISAD SATILIATSTUTUPY 000°096-28%-208
0CT00T  (09°0T8°T) 00°0 09 0T8T 0070 SUOBUR [0S TH 000°S56-28V-207
0169 819 1T 781 00-0g STTEITPOR 000" ZEZL-Z8F-20T
0070 00°§T 00°0 000 00°GT uoTIesusduio) §,A8HIOM 000" 0ZL-Z8%-20Z
¥9°19 6L 16T L9759 12 80€ 60008 UoTEUS 000" 8TL~28%-20T
0070 00" 0% 000 000 00°0F STETIONPSd 9OURINSUT T00°91L-28F-20T
66°£8 LA FSTo% 9L°9CF 00°02% spuURINSUT 83TT/Te1Tds0on 000°9TL-287-20C
9L°8L £a°GT 09°5 LU 6S 00°5L Aitanoeg TeToog 000" STL-Z8F-20Z
Z8°LL 0E°LLZ L5726 0L°2LE 00°052°T QWTL TInE - [roIded 000 TOL-Z87-20Z

UCTIRIISTUTURY - z8F 3dag

G8 Z¥ 6T"9FPE LT ZLTZ09'T 18°€00°€T 00TQSE’0¢ SOUBUDIUTIRH ISIUTM - g.% 1ded TeioL

saanjTpuadxy
QHAA IHMILS H00VH - Z0¢ pung

agsn (TYHIONEY) TVWION (ASYEMITA) ASYHYONI  (TWIWEMONSY} TYITION LA AIANEHY NOILATHISHA FAGHNN 19
1909 % TONYIVL £202/TE/€0 HLNOW ET0Z/TE/ED £2-22027
ATICTIVAY ¥Od ALIATIOY HONYTIVD OLX
EC0Z/TE/E0 INIANT JOTHEd GUSUYDIR dd
5§85 e8]

ZI/9 :9beg INEWNHDEYd 40 ALID ¥04 IHOdTY TINLIANAAXT ANV TONITATI Hd S0:T0 £202/2T/%0



Z0"9L B 6EZ 0ot o g1 09L 00 000°T TTO 3 SUTTOSED 000°9FL-BLF-£02
68°L9 LE"8F Z¥ 1T £G°T0T 00°0ST 2IBDTPRH 000" Z2L-8LF-£0T
000 00069 0070 00" 0 00059 uotiesusdwo) §,ISHIOH 000 0ZL-8LF-£0T
SE°ZS 0£°100°2 87°29% 0L "86T'Z 00" 002’¥ uoTsuUSd 000" 8TL-BLF-£0T
Q00 007052 oo 0070 007062 STYTioNPSd 23URINSUT TO0 STL-BLY-E0C
VL PS By TI66°T 0L %1 2G5 80% ‘2T 007 00F’'% soueInsul SITI/Te1TdsoH 000 9TL-BLE-E07
5799 0T 91¢g 76 8% 06 EEF 00049 AjTanoeg TeTO0g 000°STL-8LY-£07
15789 ¥8°vLZ'E €LT0TS 9T GSZT'L 00700F ‘0T swTL TTNd - [Toxdeg 000" Z0L-8LF-£02
QOUBUSIUTRH I33UTM - 8LF 2d=2d
6€°9¢€ 50°ZZE'9T LL"G66 GETLEE’E 007099 ‘62 S2DTATOS OTIIRIL - Srv 3deg Te3ol
000 007009 000 000 00009 SI0JOBAJUCY  JUTEH 3 ITRday 000 0E6-SLF-£0T
8¢S 06" LOL'E 00°0 0T°262°T 00°000°S seTTddng souruUsIUTRK 3 aTedey 000 SLL-GLF-E£0T
000 00004 000 0600 00005 TIO 3 SUTTOSEY 000" 9% L-GLF-£07
LB"9% 8E L ZL9 79769 00°0FT 2IBOTPOH 000" ZZL-5L%-£02
00" o 00029 00" 0 0070 00029 uoTiesusdue] s,I3)I0M 000 0ZL-GLF-£0€
0Z"6E 0z gEv ‘¢ 6£4z¢E 08°L95°T 00°000°F uotTsuad 000 8TL-SL%-£0C
0070 007062 0070 000 00°0s8¢ 214TIoNPad SDURINSUT TO0'9TL-SLF-E0C
99°9¢ ZLT8T9'Z TE°2Z9T 82 12571 00°0ST ¥ soueInsul oITT/Te3TdscoH 000 9TL-SLF-EOE
9L°9F FARERS 9L°8¢ 85082 007009 £3Tanneg TeID0§ 000 STL-SLF-EOT
GO LY £¥°681°S 6G ZLY LSTOT'F 000086 SWTL TTnd - TT0IZARg 000" C0L-SLF—E0T
SVTATDS DIIIRIL - SLF7 3ded
LE"ST E0TEEL 9T GG 0E0'T L699G57¢CT 00" 006’62 SDUBULIUTEN 2UTANoY - £9% 3deg Teioq
ZL 68 02649 000 08" FV8 ‘¥ 00°00F ‘S SI0IDEIIUOD "JUTeRH 3 ITedey 000 0E6-£9F-£02
ZETTIT 66'FT0°C oo T0"$8€ c0"00F’‘¢E sarTddng sourusijuTeN 3 ITedey 000°GLL-E9F-£0TZ
a0 0 00°00€E 00°0 000 00" 00E 1TO ® SUTIOSED Q00 9¥%L-£0%-£02
6% ST LL°T8 86°9 £Z°89 00°0ST SIBOTPEK 000 ZZL-E9F-E0Z
0G0 007059 00°0 000 007069 uotjesuadwon s,I9}I0M 000°0ZL-E9V-E02Z
L9 8E £E6°GLG'T FELEE L0°F29°1 00 00Z‘% uoTsuUSg 000 8TL-E8F-E0T
0C 0 00052 0070 000 007052 STYTAONPIY SOUBINSUT T00 9TL-E9F-E0EZ
ap-cE €6 BERT SFT99T L0°098°T 007 00F ‘% SDURINSUI 2FTT/Teirdson 000 9TL-E9F-E0T
88 0£"86¢ 6L°627 0L 162 007059 AjTanoeg TeroCg 000 STL-ESF-E0T
9G¥ T6E°90L°S 66°68F 60EGLT 00005 ‘0T SWITL TN - TTOLARg 000 ZOL-£9F-€0%
DIVBUSIUTRE SUTINCY - £9F 3dsd
0070 Q0"SZZB1IT 000 oo 00°GZE 61T UOTIONAZSUOD - T5F 2ded [2201
000 00" 522611 000 000 00°SZZ'61T TATSG TENISBIZUOD/TRUCTSSSIOI] 000 00B-TSP-£0T
UOTIONIISUC) — [5F 3480
seiInlTpusdxy
£€706 T1°229 8T TLTGEZ ST 68°C06 ELT 00°SZ5726T SANNIATY TYLOL
££°06 T1°2Z9 8T TL SEC°SCT 68°Z06 £L1 006267261 000 3deQ TPloL
00 00T 000 00'S2Z’61T 00°SZZ 61T 00 SZE 61T pund teIauss WoIF IDISUBI] 101°9L9-000-£02
G FL IT°2z9 8T TL°0107°9 687419 "0S 00008 gL IS 19¥ - SIUBID 3701§ 000" 9FS-000-£0Z
000 3deq
sanuaazayg
aNQd LAFILS TY¥20T - £0¢ PUng
azsn (TYHE0ONIY) IYRMON {ASYAISEd) ISYHIINT {TYHAONTY) TYWHON LHDdNd JHANANY NOIIdIHO5dAa FIIHOR 19
I90d % ADNYTYL £Z0Z/TE/E£0 HINCH £Z0Z/T1E/C0 £7-7Z02
ATICIIVAY ¥0d ALIAILOY ADNYTIYE OIA

2T/ L

:abeg

€Z0C/TE/E0 DNIGNE dOoT¥dd

LNARHDEYd 40 ALTD Y04 I¥04WY HANLIANHAXE NV dNNTAHAY

jusuyoIeg :dd
ggg :x9s[)

W3 S0:T0 £€202/2T/%0



08°2S¢  (I2°%806%T) £9°05Z 101 T9°6ST 91T (00752628} STANITANTARA % SAONIATT J0 IAN
T9°GE ZL790L7 19T 80°586 ‘€2 Q€ ERL'LG 00°05F‘sze STANLIANAIXT TYLOL
£€€°06 T1°229'8T TL°6€£T°SCT 687206 'ELT 00°SES 26T SHANAATT TYIOL
TQHNA LEEELS TYO0T — £07 pund
19°5¢ ZLT90L'L9T 80°686 ‘€2 BZ EFL'LS 00°08¥% 'G22 SHYNLIANIIXE TYIOL
68 76 6S VLT'T 69°0TZ 02 I¥'06L712 007596 ‘22 UoTleIZSTUTWRY - Z8F 3dsQ Telof
00 00T 000 0o oc0‘0g 0070006702 00700002 PESYILAD IATIRIFSTUTWDY 0007 0%6-¢8F-£0Z
72765 6T TT €T T8°€T 00°5¢ ERa=tena ity 000" 2ZL-28F-£0Z
00°0 00°ST 00°0 00°0 00°ST uoTiesuadwo) §,133I0M 000°0ZL-28F-€0Z
TE 6% £8°91¢ L9°F9 LTI "80E 00 5z9 UoTEUg 000 8TL-Z8F-E£0Z
00°0 000§ 0070 000 00" 05 2TYTIONPRC SDURINSUL T00STL-ZBF-£0Z
617 L9 SZ ETC ¥5°0% CLGET 00059 2ouURANSUT SFTT/TeaTdson Q00°"STL-Z8F-£02
S0°65 76 0F 09°G§ 20769 00 00T Ajtanoes TeToCg 000" STL-2BF-E0¢Z
P8 F9 8€°LZS L5 26 Z9°ZL6 00°005°T SWTL TInd - TTorARd 000°20L~-28F-E0%
UOTIRIISTUTWPRY - Z8F 3dsa
0T LY S0°259'pT L0 8BFL T S6°LYO'ET 00 00LLE SOUBUSIUTPH IS3UTH - BLF 1ded TElCL
00°00T (86 6T) 00°0 86°6T 000 ga17ddng aoueusjuUTER % rredsy 000" SLL-BLP-E0Z
00°0 00°000°9 00°0 0070 00700079 171E8 000 ESL-8LP-£0E
ssaniTpusdxy
ANAA LATELS TYO0T - £0Z PUnd
aasn {(TVIIONEY) TYIRION (ISYIEOET) ISYHIONT  (TYWHONAY) TY¥HION LADANE JHANARY NOTLATHOSHT JHIHON 1O
1908 % HONYIVL £Z0Z/TE/E0 HINOH £20T/TE/C0 £€z-7Z02

dTEVTIVAY

Z1/8 :obeg

d0d ALIATLOY

GNERHIEYd J0 ALID ¥04 Id0ddd dUNLTANAd XA

HINYIYd dLX

EC0Z/TE/E0 ONIANT OCTIdHEd

aNe

AONHANYE

1UDWUDIRS g
ggg 1Iasn
Wd S0:T0 £¢0¢/CL/F0



L5766 8E°€LY {(LF FL970€CT) Z9°08% 01T 00" BST TTT SEANLIANIAXA ¥ SENANIATY 0 LIN

LST00T (80759071} 00 00C°0ET B0 IT1Z 68T 00°9FT“88T SHYNLIONHAXE TYIOL

0Z°00T (0L°T6S) (LF FLY) 01.°168°66¢2 00" 00E'66Z SHNNIATY TYLOL

iausudo [SASpSY PTSTIUMCIE - TS7Z PUNI

LS 00T (80°G90°T) 00°0C0'0ET 80°TIZ ‘68T 00°3FT ‘88T SEINLIANEANE TELOL

L5°00T (80°G90°T) 00000 “0ET 20°T1Z2‘681 00"9FT ‘88T ooo 3dsd Telog

00°00T (ev-0) 000 EPCIG‘6 0D'ETS ‘6 asuadxy 159I21UT 000°566-000-T52

007007 GE*0 000 G9°ZE9 ‘8% 00 EE9‘8F TedTouTag-juswaxried 390 000°166-000-T5Z

007007 00°0 00° 000 “QET 00 000 ‘0ET 007000 70ET PROUISAQ 2ATIRIISTUTWPY 000°096-000-T16¢Z

00" 00T {00"590°T) 00°0 00°G690°t 00°0 TATSE TENASPILUGD/[RPUCTSERI0Id 0007 008-000-T6%

000 3dag

SRANIATPUSARE

0Z°00T {0L"T6EG) (LT PL9) DL T168°66C 00°Q0E ‘662 SHONAATE TYLOL

0Z°00T  (OL°T&S) (LY PLY) 0L 16B°66C 00" 00E ‘66T 000 3deg Tedodq

00°00T (00°2E2Z2°'7) 0070 00°gzz’e 0¢ 0 SNOBURTTE0STH 000" 769-000-T%%

v " 66 0ET0ES’T (L7 "Fi9) 0L7699L6T 06 00E ‘662 SnUBADY XBL 000" 70P-000-T%C

000 adeq

SOTNUBDASYT

JusuidoTaaspay PILTIUMOIL — [SZ pung

JESN ("TYRHONEY)  TYIRON (ASYTADEA) IASYAEONT  {TUIRIONTY) TYRRION LEaDaNd THIaNINT NOIIdTdDSHd YIGHON T2
1904 % ADNYTYD €z0Z/TE£/E0 BINOH £Z02/1E/€0 £Z-2202

ATAYTINAY M0d ALIATLOV ADNYIVE aIA

ZT/6 iebeg

€Z0Z/TE/E0 DNIAONT dOI¥Ed

SNINH2EYd 40 ALID ¥0d IMOdEY HINIIANHEAXE ANY HANEATS

juswysIed 4Q
S5§ :Iesn
Wd S0:T0 €202/21/%0



007 00T (2 88e'LT) (00°Z807°2) ZS°6BE’LT 0070 SHYNITANEIXE ® SEOANIATY A0 LAN

8870z 00°08L 6T 00-65zz‘¢ 00"02Z°S 00 000°sze STANLIANTIXKA TYLOL

Z¥ 0ET (g5 509 "L} 00 EPT 257509 ‘¢e 00°000°52 SHANTATT TYLOL

ipung [ETIOWE S,UrISlsSA — ITQF pund

88702 00 08L‘6T 005222 00°022’S 00°000°52 STINLIANIAXE TYLOL

88°0%Z 00°08L'6T npeszz‘e 00°02Z°G Q0000762 pog 3dsg Te3ol

co-e 00°000°S 000 000 00°000°S SNOIURT [SDSTH 000" S56-000-T0F

€1°G¢ 00°6G8TT o0-szz’e 00°GSFT’S 00°000 ‘02 TATDS [RUIDEIZUC)/ [BEUCTSS2J01d 000°008-000-T0%

00°00T (0D"°GL) 000 00 S4 000 sarddnsg soueusiurtely 3 Itedsy 000" SLL-000-TOV

000 3dsg

sazniTpuadxy

ZF0ET {(25°509°L) COEFT 25760928 007 000°SE SANNIAZY TYLOL

ZrTOET {€5°609 L) 007EFT 257509 '¢¢ G0 000°s2 000 adsg TE3OL

007007  (00°%0Z°02) 00°0 00 %oz 02 00" 0 SNOBURT[SDSTH 000 ¥69-000-T0F

€089 (25 TOF’L) 00°€FT FARR NS 007000°G snusasyd Te3Tded) pPeInqQIIjucd 000 ¥L9-000-T0F

000 007000702 00°0 000 00°000°02 butpung TeIsped IIU0 000" 825-000-T0F

000 3dag

SENUSASY

pung TRTICWSH §,URIal8a - TOF PUNG

JEsSN {TYMRRIONTY ) TRON {ASYEIDHAT) HSYHEINI ("TVWIONIY) TYRMON LADJNE JEHANARY HOILdIFI5HA HHARWON T9
isad % ADNY TS £202/1E/€0 HLNOH €Z0Z/1E/€0 £7-2202

ATIYTINAY

11/01 tabeg

d0d ALIATLOY

HONYIVE dLX

£Z0Z/TE/E0 DNIANE JOId3d

LNAWHDEYE A0 ALTID 904 1HOdEd DMALTIANIIXH dN¥ HONEAYY

JusugoXed 1dd
5gS :Isen
Wd ££:T0 £208/¢1/%0



0€°L90°T (LO"EST TTIE) (907805 "5¢€) LOTETIEL'EFE 00"L9T°2E SHYNLIANEIXE 3 SHANIATY J0 13N
TL78L £9°5%57T09 LOT06F‘LLF LET9EE‘EET e 00°zaR’‘vze’e SANNA TI¥ - STUNIIGNIIXE TYIOL
¥5°68 96 £6£°06€ 10°Z86°1%¥ PV 669'995°¢ 00°6F0 L5872 SANAT TTY - SENNIATY TYLOL
€8 TT¥ (£5°8L6°6) (S£-9E07L9) EGTBLTET 0000z ‘g SHINIIGNTIIXT 3 SHANIATT A0 LIN
SZ LPT (98°T2Z£’69) G€°9£0°L9 98° 120912 00 00L“9FT SHANLIANEAXH TYIOL
06°2ST (6E°00E'6L) 0070 6L 00 ‘62T 00006 ‘6%T SENNTATI TYLIOL
dEAMES - 065 pund
STTLFT (98" 12’69} GET9E0’LO 898 120’9717 00°00L‘9FT SEAALIANEdXE TYLOL
SZTLFT (98°T2E’69) GET9E0 LY 98120912 00°00L'9FT 000 2adsg TEIOL
€6°GET (00799075} 00°98T 671 0099161 00 00T '%T uotgetoeidsg 000°896-000-06%
00 00T 000 00°000°0% 00 000 0F 00000 ‘0% PESUISAQ SATIBIISTUTIRY 000" 096-000-06S
00700T  {00"S5¥9) 00" 5%9 00" G%9 000 SNOSURTTHDISTH 000" 556-000-065
000 00 000°0T 000 000 00°000°0T gI030RIJUe) "JUTRH ¥ ITeday 000 0E6-000-0668
£L7G8 T1°8€E E0T8ET 68 TL6°T 00°00E°E SST3TTTIN 000" 0Z6-000-066
0986 00'8PT 0G0 00°¢5% 0T 00700901 Spuog » SOURINSUT 000 0T6-000-065
000 007008 000 00°0 00008 Telusy WwIoITun 000" ST8-000-065
00 ZLy  (SL°866°26) 087926 °¢ S47866°LTT 007000752 TAdS5 TEUIDEBIJUCH/TRUOISS2I0Id 000" 008-000-065
00°00T (g% "LE) 000 ZVLE 060 soTTddng souerusjutrel 3 atedsy 000 GLL-000-068
£0°99 06°T0T LT 6T 0T 861 00 00¢€ SIBDTPOR 000" 2ZL-000-06%
000 00008 000 000 00008 uoTiesusduic) §,I93I0H 000°0ZL-000-064
G BY POTE08’F 65°BE6 96°96F ‘¥ 00°00E‘6 UoTsUSd 000" 8TL-000-066
0070 00004 00°0 000 00 00L STYTIONPS SOUBINEUT T00 9TL-000-0865
58789 £2°€08°T 807199 LLT%BT9 00 000’8 souransUl SITT/Telrdsoy 000" 9TL-000-06S
6% 09 80" €56 L6 T8 Z69%6 007 00F'T AQTanneg [eIDog 000 S1L-000-065
26709 G6°L8678 TL658°T GO ZI0'PT 00 000’Ee SWTL TTnd - [loxhAeq 000" Z0L-000-065
000 1dag
saanzTpusdxy®
06°25T (6£°00£762) 000 6E£°002'622 00006 °6FT SHANTATY TELOL
06°24T {6E£ 00E'6L) 00°0 6£°00Z°'62¢ 007006 ‘6FT o000 3deag TE3CL
000 00" 006°T 000 00°0 00°006°T SIUSWISIAUL U0 1€3I33UT 000°¥99-000-066
L8 98T (6£°00Z°'T8) 00" o 6E°002°622 007000 ‘8FT $B8DTAIDE ISMBF 000°9%9-000-065
000 3dea
sanlanaay]
QNOL dEMIS — 066G pung
agsn (TYIIONGY) TYRION (ASYHIDHA) ASYHIONI  (TYRONEY) TYREON LADANE dATANTWY NOILATIDSHA FIEHAN TID
19ad % AINYTIL £Z0Z/TE£/€0 HINOW £Z0T/TE/ED £2-2202
HIGYTIVAY 04 ALIATLOV HONVIYd QLA

TI/T1 :abeg

£C0Z/TE/E0 DONIANT TOIYEd

LNAWHHDYYd 40 ALID ¥0d I¥04EY JEOLIANIAXA ANV HAONIAET

JuawysIed tgd
385 :aasq

Hd ££:10 £€20¢/¢T/F0



00700T LL"G60'9 00°0 {(LL°56079) 000 SHENLIANEAXA 3 SEANFAFY J0 LN
1862 9% 1TFGC ‘9% 000 FE"800 %2 0005508 SEANLTIANTAXE THIOL
vz ze EFLEQ'ZY 0070 LS CTI6 LT 00 055708 SANNAATT TYLOL
ITYATLSHA HIWHAS SEOMAGETANTY — (067 Ppung
18762 99°T¥G'9S 00°9Q FETBO0'%C 00055708 SMUNLIONTAXHT TYIOL
18762 99 T¥5'9G 00°0 7E£800°%2 00°055°08 000 adeg TeE3OL
000 0070009 00°0 0070 00°000°9 AxtotIqna 0Z0'6LL-000-05E
9z ¢c 90°€849 00°0 F6 95T Qo ogL sasuadxy MoOU§ IeD ST0 6LL-000-052
00°0 00700Z'81 000 00°0 00°002°8T 1USUUTEL IS 9helg €T0"6LL-000-05Z
62°¢C 00°TT2°9T 00°0 00°68¢ 00°000°LT UOTIRIISTUTHRY - TBATISSI ZT0"6LL-000-05%
09°65¢ (50°5L676) 000 S0°SL9'ET 00°00L'E aouB(-BUTSTRY pung 8007 6LL-000-0%8C
000 00°C06°T 000 00" 0 00°006°'T P2IY SUBIPTTUDI-ABRQ ~3182d GO0 6LL-000-0GE
000 007002 00 0 00°0 00°00¢c 831JBID 3 S1I¥ - ABQ ‘18941 FOO"6LL-000-08Z
00°0 00°00% ‘9 00" 0 000 00*005"'9 ATeEM/208d - Avd TeatTised £00°6LL-000~05C
8T LE G9"ZES ‘9T 000 GETLLL'G 007 00E ‘92 ssuadyy 9OUBRMIOIIDJ TO0 64LL-000-0DGT
000 3dea
saxnyrpusdxy
v zz €FTLED ‘20 00°0 LS gTe ‘L1 00°055°08 SEANNAEATY TYLOL
FAAA £¥LEQZY Q0" 0 LG TI6 LT 00055708 000 adag TelQl
o0°o 007050V 000 Q0°0 00°0S0°% SNOBUBTTIDSTH 000" ¥89-000-052
0070 00°005‘9 000 0N 0070069 jusag TeTosds JASH Z00°5L9-000-05¢
£ET102 {0G-2850) 00°0 05°980°¢CT 00°00679 putrsTeEY pPUNI TO0°GL9-000-08E
00°0 0eToen ‘s 00°0 000 00°000°s uyoldn soevag » ploieH-s3uRId Z00°065-000-052
co'o 00°000'0€ 00"C 0070 00°00C‘0E pUnog SICWTTH § Burali-sjusin 100°065-000-052
TE'ST 00°0GS ‘€T oc"o 00°0sv ‘2 00°000“9T sdrysaosuods aiezxodiod G000 GL¥-000-0%2
9%°0T F898L 1 oo"0 9T ETZ 00°000°2 SATIQ pund dryszsqusp €00°5L7-000-0%52
000 00700579 00°0 000 00°005°9 Sa9d TeM/S0'rd Z00°SL¥-000-0S<
L0°%5 60 LEB'T 00°0 1672912 007000 ‘% S3IRID 3 S}IY 100" GL¥-000~-062
000 3deq
sanuanayg
TUALILSEA HARWNS dASEAgITANTY — 067 Pung
assn (TYREONDY) TYHION (ISYAIDEA) HASYMASHNI  (TVRHONAY) TYWNION 139009 JEQNINY NOTLATHOSAA HIGHAN TO

120d % HONYIVE €202/1£/50 HINOW mmom\am\ﬁmmm £20¢

ATACIIVAY ¥O0d ALIATIOV ADNYIVE QLA :

g1/
iy

/T

iabeg

s eSS ONTANT d0ITdHd

LNARHDEYd 40 ALID Y04 L¥0dEY HAINLIANAAXY NV IONIATT

Juswysaed :gq
ggg 1aes(

WA 9%:Z0 £202/2T/%0



KaBA ()

¥rdmarna ks Rekding Athyaity

2023 MONTHLY PERMITS BY JURISDICTION

COMSTOCK

“KALAMAZOO

SPECIAL - HOMEOWNER _

JURISDICTION PERMIT CATEGORY # PERMITS PERMIT REVENUE
COMSTOCK BUILDING 718 96,274
COMSTOCK ELECTRICAL 281 % 6,148
COMSTOCK MECHANICAL 231 % 4,070
COMSTOCK PLUMBING 19 8% 3,708
COMSTOCK SPECIAL - JURISDICTION 213 200

_KALAMAZOO

_SPECTAL - HOMEQWNER

BUILDING $ 3941
KALAMAZOO ELECTRICAL 2218 3,340
KALAMAZOO MECHANICAL 241 % 3,559
KALAMAZ00 PLUMBING 1its 1,880
KALAMAZOO SPECIAL - JURISDICTION 51% 500

PARCHMENT BUILDING 1l 155.00
PARCHMENT ELECTRICAL ils 120.00
PARCHMENT MECHANICAL 2} 4 241.00
PARCHMENT PLUMBING 2l $ 306.00
PARCHMENT SPECIAL - JURESDICTION 1i % 100,00

PARCHMENT SPECIAL HOMEOWNER

PINE GROVE BUIE_:_DING 21 4 259
PINE GROVE ELECTRICAL 41 % 728
PINE GROVE MECHANICAL i1 4 140
PINE GROVE PLUMBING 214 410
PINE GROVE SPECIAL - JURISDICTION -15 -

PINE GROVE

_ SPECIAL HOMEOWNER

] 'BUILDING

OMEOWNER
=

RICHLAND % 5,683

RICHLAND ELECTRICAL 13t $ 3,226

RICHLAND MECHANICAL 16| & 2,901

RICHLAND PLUMBING i3] $ 2,392

RICHLAND SPECIAL - JURISDICTION 13 -
SPECIAL -

RICHLAND VILLAGE

SPECIAL - HOMEOWNER
G e

RICHUXND VILLAGE BUILDING 413 2,732
RICHLAND VILLAGE ELECTRICAL 11§ 106
RICHLAND VILLAGE MECHANICAL 31 ¢ 342
RICHLAND VILLAGE PLUMBING 4] % 600
RICHLAND VILLAGE SPECIAL - JURISBICTION -14 -

mé‘/o PREV'YEARMON H.\ _

" 274.0%

_MARCH 2022

Yo 2021 - YTD

217

127.2%"




0$

81

= JPODNU[] IST U NIRTIEIAACL)
aNV

[enuapIsey — aFes)oISeg UL ]
ANV

Supng = odAnuIa g s g
NV W4 656511 £T0T/TE/E

ANV TV 00°00°¢1 £20¢/1/€
| TOOMIDE PANSS[RIE(] IS ]
. w@HOUUMH 1:.< “QOﬁ.m—gnMOHH
00°SST$
L
Ayewrwung woday
0$ :29dA ¥, 10,J 9nfe *ISUOT) [EI0],
00°SSTS :adA], 30, s99 [e10],
I :2dA Y 30,1 s3I g JeI0 T,
awoy jo ronowa]  :wondirosa(y yrom
0% 00's51$ £202/90/€0 XWUEHS ‘SSOOWOH  015-011-20-90 SYWOHLM 12 ¢01-§1-¢zdd
INJEA "ISU0D) 12101, 33 E(] Iuss| J0IDEINUC)) UM IQUINN [PI1e] ssa1ppV qof # I g

€20T/€0/%0




1saubay
wonopsumy = Are3am)y e

ANV

(A94) 'TOH = SHelsHueeg
CINV 81

= cﬁooumﬁb.wﬂﬂ«ﬂbﬂ_.ﬁogﬁ@row
QNY T

feroadg = adALId IS
sprooay v ‘wonendog

00°001$ PN(Y I [¥I0], T ISITUIOJ Te10 T,
T20Z/L1/90 porerdumo]y onoadsuy soususjurey Apadorg
TTOZ/9T/L0 *pojerdmoD) uonoadsu-ay el Aadorg
T20T/1T/£0 pe1dwro) UOH0AdSUL-0 Jurei £tadolg
oumpIeg jo L1y woay ysanboy sowenmmepy Arader]  mondmosaq sTopm
rlrr.l.!\..\v . \
00001 1e0Z/p1/90 HAOUL HANSVHUL sl 05L-02¢-207%0 0 1Y NOAH €01 ¥90-81-128d
0] 18107, 33 DINUH 3Ne(] RLtin] AnLileg) UM FOQUINN] JaoxeJ ssarppy qof # IR
- InwId  Teradg

€202/50/%0 —FUWTWIIIOA mcosum%ﬁ oquqﬁﬁwz bu ) &o(.i,



2023 MONTHLY PERM Y JURI

JURISBICTION PERMIT CATEGORY # PERMITS | PERMIT REVENUE |
COMSTOCK BUILDING 77 $ 117,561
COMSTOCK ELECTRICAL. 53 10,945
COMSTOCK MECHANICAL 54 $ 9,337
COMSTOCK _ PLUMBING 37 : 6,025
COMSTOCK SPECIAL - JURISDICTION 2 4 200

SPECIAL - HOME WNER -
KAMMAZOD BUILDING 26 24,736
KALAMAZOO ELECTRICAL 45 6,147
KALAMAZOO MECHANICAL &4 9,041
KALAMAZOO PLUMEING 22 3,609
KALAMAZOO SPECIAL - JURISDICTIOM g8 $ 800

BUILDING

ot

PARCHME 4

PARCHMENT ELECTRICAL 4

PARCHMENT MECHANICAL 2 [

PARCHMENT PLUMBING 2 $

PARCHMENT SPECIAL - JURISDICTION 1 3

PARCHMENT SPECIAL - HOMEOWNER (O -
////-'? 4( / % 7 4 % : /|

PINE GROVE BUEEDING 6 3 1.241

PINE GROVE FLECTRICAL 8 3 1,230 ;

PINE GROVE MECHANICAE, 5 5 675

PINE GROVE FLUMBING 3 5 686

PINE GROVE SPECIAL - JURISDICTION [i 3 -

. PINE G GRGVE

_ SPEC{AL HMEOWNER _

A Y 2
chmmn BUILDING 21 I3 9 645
RICHLAMD ELECTRICAL 28 g 5 683
RECHLAND MECHANICAL 43 & 7.817
RICHLAND PLUMBING 22 3 4753
RICHLAND SPECIAL - JURISDICTION 1 5 100

RICHLAND

SPECIAL - HOMEOWNER
ACRICHIARDL s o1

15 s
RICHLAND VILLAGE Fi [
RICHLAND VILE AGE 3 [ 453
RICHLAND VILLAGE MECHANICAL 5 £ 632
RICHLAND VILLAGE PLUMBING 5 3 810
RICHLAND VILLAGE SPECTAL - JIRISDICTION 1 $ 100
RICHLAND VILLAGE i} 3 -

S?ECIAE. HOMEOWNER

% 2022 -YTD

o 454.4%

iy -
YED - MARCH 2022 _

o 2022 - YD

% 2023 YTD

BUDGET

U 1d41%

583 . 57,:4%
2023 MONTHLY CUMULATIVE TOTALS
# PERMITS REVENUE
0l s 48411 JAN
142 | ¢ 34,998 FEB
276 | $ k44,116 MAR
- & ~ APR
- % - MAY
- % - JUN
. $ - JuL
- £ - AUG
- $ = SEP
- $ - oCT
- % - NOV
. % - BEC
568 | $ 227,525 2022




KALAMAZOO AREA TRANSPORTATION STUDY

CALL TO ORDER

TECHNICAL COMMITTEE MEETING
MINUTES MARCH 9, 2023 - 9:30 A.M.

The March 8, 2023 Technical Committee Meeting w.as called to order at 2:30 a.m. at Kalamazoo
Metro, by Chair Minkus. Minkus began the meeting with a moment of silence for Rene Rangel, a Van
Buren County Road Commission employee who died in the line of duty on March 3, 2023.

ROLL CALL

Meeting aftendance was recorded on the sign-in sheet. Introductions were made by all present.

MEMBERS PRESENT

Christina Anderson
Muhammad Arif
Mickey Bittner
Heather Bowden
Dave Clift

Kerry DenBraber
Eric Feldt
Kendra Gwin
Jeff Heppler

Jim Hoekstra
Joel Hoort

Anna Horner
John Lovely

Iris Lubbert

Ryan Minkus
Dennis Randolph
Ryan Russell
Randy Schippers
Kathy Schultz
Paul Sotherland
Jodi Stefforia, Vice-Chair
Greg Vlietstra
George Waring

OTHERS PRESENT

Jamie Harmon
Megan Mickelson
Elizabeth Rumick
Hailey Savola
Steve Stepek, AICP

City of Kalamazoo

City of Portage

Village of Paw Paw (Wightman & Associates)
Michigan Department of Transportation, Statewide Planning
Van Buren County Road Commission
Michigan Department of Transportation, TSC
City of Portage

City of Portage

Village of Augusta

Road Commission of Kalamazoo County
Van Buren County Road Commission
Oshtemo Township

Texas Township

Oshtemo Township

Road Commission of Kalamazoo County
City of Kalamazoo

Village of Schooleraft

Village of Vicksburg

Central County Transportation Authority
KATS Citizens Advisory Committee
Comstock Township

Kalamazoo County Transportation Authority
City of Kalamazoo

City of Portage

Kalamazoo Area Transportation Study
Kalamazoo Area Transportation Study
ROWE

Kalamazoo Area Transportation Study

TC Minutes 3/9/23 Page 1 of 5



Ali Townsend Kalamazoo Area Transportation Study

CHANGES OR ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA

There were no changes or additions fo the agenda.

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

Randolph moved, and it was duly seconded by Heppler, “to approve the agenda of the March 9,
2023 Technical Committee Meeting.” MOTION CARRIED.

MINUTES FROM THE FEBRUARY 9, 2023 MEETING

Hoekstra moved, and it was duly seconded by Heppler, “to approve the minutes from the
February 9, 2023 Technical Committee Meeting.” MOTION CARRIED.

POLICY COMMITTEE REPORT

Stepek reported the Policy Committee met February 22, 2023. KATS Auditor from Maner Costerisan
presented a summary of the audit and audited financial statements as of and for the year ended
September 30, 2022. A clean opinion was issued with no audit findings or proposed adjustments. TIP
Amendments and a resolution of support for state targets for bridge, pavement, and reliability
recommended by the Technical Committee were approved. The FY 2023 Unified Planning Work
Program Amendment which is essentially an administrative modification, was adopted.

PUBLIC COMMENTS

No citizens’ comments were made.
DRAFT FY 2024 UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM

Due to the length of the document, a link to it is included in the packet. The Unified Planning Work
Program (UPWP) draft is also available on the katsmpo.org website. Stepek stated this is next year’s
work program. The overall consolidated planning grant program budget increased 7.9 percent.
Included in the budget is Metro’s $100,000 fare study and the renewed Remix software agreement.
The pedestrian count program and the Complete Streets plan are also included. Kalamazoo Area
Transportation Study’s (KATS) continued request to use third party in-kind contributions as match has
been approved by Michigan Department of Transportation, Federal Transit Administration and
Federal Highway Administration. The Finance Personnel Subcommittee is reviewing the option of a
cash match in the future. Beginning with Fiscal Year 2025, the agreements will not cover the required
program match. Therefore, KATS will present to the Policy Committee later this month, a proposed 15
percent increase of the contributed service agreements. Please submit comments on the UPWP to
KATS staff through the end of the month. The FY 2024 UPWP will be presented for approval at next
month’s meeting.

EDUCATIONAL TOPIC

Chair Minkus, PE, PTOE, of the Road Commission of Kalamazoo County (RCKC), made a
presentation titled RCKC Innovations Showcase. Global Positioning Systems (GPS) and section
control were incorporated into existing equipment to help with chip seal operations. Detailed pictures
of the chip spreader “cockpit’ were displayed. Due to the location of the operator seat and the size of
the equipment, the operator has poor visibly. This limited visibility resulis in overlap which is
ineffective, leads {o excess stone on the roadway, wastes material, requires manual clean-up, creates
a safety hazard, and further supports negative public perception of chip seal. To improve the
situation, RCKC learned that agricultural equipment controls could be installed on existing equipment.
RCKC decided to try the John Deere Radio RTK 450. Some adaptation of the radio was required.
Minkus played a video showing the equipment in action. Application of stone is automatically shut off

TC Minutes 3/9/23 Page 2 of 5



when equipment reaches an area already covered. Operators have found the equipment effective.
The equipment greatly reduces negative impacts of chip seal and improves the overall process. Due
to the successful implementation of the equipment, RCKC is reviewing other uses for it, such as
pavement marking. Members discussed related patents, cost savings, GIS integration, and employee
training.

CONGRESSIONALY DIRECTED SPENDING REQUEST DISCUSSION

Stepek reminded attendees that the deadline for applying for earmarks is next week. Let Stepek know
if you are applying for earmarks through Senator Gary Peters’ office so Kalamazoo Area
Transportation Study (KATS) can prepare a letter of support. So far KATS is writing support letters for
the City of Kalamazoo, City of Portage, and Metro.

SUBCOMMITTEE UPDATES

NON-MOTORIZED SUBCOMMITTEE- Mickelson reported the next Non-Motorized Subcommittss
meeting will be in April. Shared-use pathways will be discussed. Heppler opined this may be a good
time to push for work on the Kal-Haven Trail. Stepek and Minkus agreed, adding there is continued
effort to support this.

COMPLETE STREETS IMPLEMENTATION PLAN- Mickelson reported the next Complete Streets
Implementation Plan meeting will be in April,

TRAFFIC SIGNAL COORDINATION- Stepek reparted the next Traffic Signal Coordination
Subcommittee meeting will be after the April Technical Committee.

PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION UPDATES

Schultz reported the Kalamazoo Metro/CGentral County Transportation Authority Comprehensive
Operational Analysis (COA) is complete. The final report is posted on the kmetro.com website. Based
on the COA, Metro Staff are planning some bus route changes to occur in May, but most will ocour in
the fall. Microtransit plans are being analyzed. A Reguest for Proposals will be issued this summer
with anticipated implementation the first quarter of 2024, Please et Schultz know of any detours for
road construction that will impact bus routes.

STATUS REPORTS
ROADS-

Hoekstra provided the update for the Road Commission of Kalamazoo County. Public meetings have
already taken place on the12" Street and 24 Street projects. Both projects are expected to begin
April 17, 2023 with anticipated completion at the end of June. The Parkview Avenue and 11t
Street/120 Street project public information meeting will be held March 9, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. at the 12
Street Baptist Church. Phase one of the project is expected to be completed in mid-June with full
project completion scheduled for mid-August. The Aimena Drive and North 27 Street project will
begin March 27, 2023 with completion anticipated for the end of June. A public informational meeting
will be held March 28, 2023 at West Oshtemo Baptist Church. The Sprinkle Road into 1-94 project will
begin in April. Full closure of Sprinkle will oceur in May. Project completion is anticipated for the end
of June. A public informational meeting will be held March 29, 2023. Minor bridge work will occur in
May at Sprinkle and Springbrook. The Lake Street project will start March 20, 2023 with completion
anticipated for the end of the year. A public informational meeting will be held April 4, 2023.

DenBraber of Michigan Department of Transportation, responded to the inquiry that Portage Road
ramps will be open while Sprinkle Road is closed. The on-ramps to -84 that are currently closed are
expected to be open on April 13, 2023. The |-94 Portage Road deck pours are complete, Work
continues on sidewall installation.

TC Minutes 3/9/23 Page 3 of 5



Heppler reported the Village of Augusta is preparing for the summer water project which will also
impact village roads. Two water mains crossing M-96 and effected roads will be replaced.

Harmon stated the City of Portage contract did get awarded for the Shaver Road Project. The city is
walting for a bid letting date for the South Westnedge south of Centre project. A preconstruction
meeting for the [ocal streets program was held. Work will begin in mid-June. Traffic signal work is
ptanned on Osterhout Avenue,

Randolph reported the City of Kalamazoo received $12 million dollars for a rebuilding the city grant. A
safety grant was previously received. An additional $6 million dollars was received for a planning
grant for design of the downtown streets project. The $6 million dollar grant is being handled through
the State of Michigan Local Agency Program process. The City of Kalamazoo will be working directly
with the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) for the Safety grant and the $12 million dollar gran.
Work continues on the contracts for submission to FHWA. Once the contracts are approved, the City
of Kalamazoo will begin letting for project design. Design and bidding of the project is expected
toward the end of the year with construction starting in 2024. The City of Kalamazoo met with the
Michigan Office of Highway Safety Planning and the Michigan State Police regarding safety benefits
resulting from the project. Based on the cost benefit analysis, the biggest benefit of the two-way street
conversion is crash reduction savings of $21 million dollars over 20 years which will offset
construction costs. Members Arif and Schultz made inquiries. Waring provided information that the
Patterson bridge is currently closed and will be through the summer. There are no delays on the
project. A resurfacing project on West Michigan Avenue from Lovell to Main will begin April 3, 2023.
The last portion of the Stadium Drive project including landscaping will be completed. $1.5 million
dollars of sidewalk work will be completed. Lots of utility work is anticipated. The Whites Road and
Westnedge project is scheduled for late in the season. Work will begin in May on the Ransom Street
project. Maintenance and street resurfacing is also planned. Minkus enjoyed attending the city’s
project informational meetings and found it inferesting that traffic calming measures were funded by
the Foundation for Excellence. Waring elaborated the city also received a $1 million dollar grant
toward traffic calming.

LAND USE/PLANNING AND ZONING-

Bowden announced the Michigan Department of Transportation released a new electronic signature
tool called OneSpan which replaces DocuSign. Registration is open for training on the new tool.

Lubbert reported Oshtemo Township Downtown Development Authority recently closed on property
at 6627 Stadium Drive, This will allow the township to explore options to realign Atlantic Avenue.
Construction is anticipated for 2026. Oshtemo Township is moving forward with its mixed-use district.
Oshtemo Township set aside American Rescue Plan Act funds for a Comprehensive Mastar Plan.

Anderson updated the City of Kalamazoo continues the public engagement process for the two-way
conversion with plans to attend the Stuart Neighborhood meeting next week and give them an update
of proposed changes. Kalamazoo Avenue plans will be released the week of May 22, 2023 for
feedback and comments.

NEW BUSINESS
Stepek reminded attendees of a meeting with KATS Traffic Count Consultant Brian Burlingham of
Traffic Tech LLC immediately following the Technical Commitiee meeting. Minkus added the

Michigan Department of Transportation Local Bridge Program Call and Safety Program Call for
Projects are due April 3, 2023, and May 1, 2023, respectively.

TC Minutes 3/9/23 Page 4 of 5



PUBLIC COMMENTS

l.ast month, Sotherland asked members to imagine Kalamazoo becoming known as a bicycling
destination. Sotherland shared that he introduced the same vision to the Kalamazoo Bicycle Club and
encouraged attendees to continue the vision,

ADJOURNMENT

The meeting was adjourned at 10:27 a.m.

The next meeting of the Kalamazoo Area Transporiation Study Technical Committee will be held on
Thursday, April 13, 2023 at 9:30 a.m.

Approved 4/13/23 (er}

TC Minutes 3/9/23 Page 5 of 5



LICENSE AGREEMENT FOR USE OF A DESIGNATED PORTION OF
KINDLEBERGER PARK FOR THE KALAMAZQO SCOTTISH FESTIVAL 2023

THIS AGREEMENT made as of the day of , 2023, by and
between the City of Parchment ("City™), a Home Rule City, whose address is 650 South
Riverview Drive, Parchment, MI 49004; and the Kalamazoo Scottish Festival Association
("Scottish Festival"), a 501(C)(3) Corporation, whose address is P.O. Box 511, Oshtemo,
MI 49077.

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants of this Agreement
and the Agreement itself, IT IS HEREBY AGREED, for good and valuable consideration,
the receipt of which is acknowledged:

1. License. The City grants The Kalamazoo Scottish Festival Association, its
employees and representatives ("Scottish Festival"), a 501(C)(3) Corporation, a license
to use designated portions of Kindieberger Park ("the Park") for the Scottish Festival
scheduled in between Friday evening, September 08, 2023, and Sunday, September 10,
2023, in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth herein. This License does
not create a tenancy or other interest in the premises.

2. Use of Designated Portions of Kindleberger Park. The Scottish Festival may
use that portion of Kindleberger Park as outlined in the map attached hereto as Exhibit A.

The lower baseball field infield may not be used for heavy athletics or any other use. The
lower baseball field outfield may be used for heavy athletics or any other use.

3. Qvernight Camping Prohibited. There shall be no overnight camping in the
Park. However, clan tents may be set up on Friday evening and remain until Sunday
morning. The Scottish Festival may use two shifts of two security people overnight on
Friday and Saturday to secure the clan tents. Campers shall be cited for violating City
Ordinances, and tents and persons shall be removed from the Park.

4. Portable Restrooms. The Scottish Festival may, at its own cost, rent
portable restrooms for patrons' use to be located in the areas as approved by the City's
DPW Supervisor set forth on the attached map (Exhibit A).

5. Alcohol Prohibited. There shall be no alcohol in the park. Any alcohol sold
or used shall be off the premises.

6. Parking on Grass or Pathways Prohibited. There shall be no parking by
Scottish Festival personnel or patrons on the grass or on pathways within the Park.

7. Hours of Operation. The Scottish Festival may open at 9:00 a.m., each day
and shall close by 6:00 p.m., each day.




8. Marketing Material. All marketing materials of the Scottish Festival shall say
“Scottish Festival”, where applicable, and not just "Festival", which may cause confusion
between it and the "Kindleberger Park Summer Festival.”

9. Food Trucks. The Scottish Festival may have up to six (6) food trucks to
serve its patrons with three (3) to be located in the lower park, and three (3) more to be
located in the upper park. All food trucks must have their own source of electricity
(generator, etc.). UNLESS APPROVED BY Public Works staff.

10.  Fireworks Prohibited. No person may fire, discharge or have in their
possession any firework or any substance of an explosive nature. A small low charge
blank will be fired from a cannon as was amended to the previous contract.

11.  Clean Up. The Scottish Festival shall be responsible for cleanup of trash
during and at the conclusion of the event with the expectation that the Park is left in as
good condition as when arrived, which shall be completed by 4:00 p.m., on Sunday,
September 10, 2023. At the conclusion of the event, City staff will empty City trash cans.
Any other trash receptacles shall be removed by the Scottish Festival, its volunteers or
contracted services. The Scottish Festival agrees to accept liability for any damage to
Kindleberger Park caused by the Scottish Festival and its use of the Park and understands
that any fees asscciated with repairs as a result of the event may be charged back to the
Scottish Festival. '

12.  Police Officers. If the Scottish Festival feels that Kalamazoo Township Police
Department Officers are necessary during the Scottish Festival, the Scottish Festival may
contract directly with Kalamazoo Township. Any additional police services shall be the
sole cost of the Scottish Festival. The City will not provide police officers except in the
course of their normal duties on behalf of the City.

13.  Sunday Concert. In consideration of the use of the Park and the City's
electricity, the Scottish Festival shall provide, without fee to the City, a Sunday Concert
in conjunction with the City’s Concerts in the Park on Sunday evening, August 27, 2023,
weather permitting. If the Scottish Festival does not have its own sound system, it may
hire the Sound Engineer used by the Parchment Concerts in the Park Program at a cost
of $600.00.

14.  Insurance. The Scottish Festival shall provide to the City liability insurance
at all times naming the City of Parchment as an additional named insured and with
commercial general liability coverage limits of no less than $1,000,000.00 per each
occurrence, $100,000.00 for damage to the property, $1,000,000.00 for personal injury
and $2,000,000.00 general aggregate.

15. Hold Harmless/Indemnity. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the
Scottish Festival, its volunteers and agents agree to defend, pay on behalf of it, indemnify
and hold harmless the City, its elected and appointed officials, employees, agents and
volunteers and others working on behalf of the City from any and all claims, lawsuits,

2




demands and actions, including costs of litigation and actual attorney's fees, of any kind
or nature, for any damages or claim(s) which may be asserted or recovered from the City
by reason of personal injury, including bodily injury and/or death and/or property
damage, including the loss of use thereof, which arises from or is any way connected to
the Scottish Festival's use of the Park, except for those arising out of or caused by the
sole negligence, reckless or intentional acts of the City.

16.  Non-Employees of City. Employees and representatives of the Scottish
Festival are not employees of the City nor independent contractors of the City and shall
not represent themselves as employees, agents or representatives of the City.

17.  Revocation. In the event of any breach of this License Agreement or any
Federal, State, County or local law or regulation, the City may terminate this Agreement
upon 30 days' notice except in the case of an emergency, as determined in the sole
discretion of the City, immediately upon notice to the Scottish Festival. In the event that
state, federal laws, ordinances, rules, regulations or directives prevent the Scottish
Festival from taking place, this license shall be deemed revoked.

18. Renewal. This License Agreement may be renewed on such terms and
conditions as are agreed upon by the parties. The Scottish Festival shall give the City
notice 30 days of its intent to renew.

19.  No Assignment. The parties understand that this License Agreement may
not be assigned, transferred or otherwise conveyed to any party without the prior written
consent of the Parchment City Commission.

20.  Notices. All notices, requests, demands or other communications required
or permitted to be given hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been
given if delivered personally, or if sent by facsimile transmission or by first-class mail,
postage prepaid, to the address of the parties as set forth below, by e-mail, or such other
address as shall be furnished by the respective parties after the execution of this contract:

CITY: City Clerk
City of Parchment
650 South Riverview Drive
Parchment, MI 49004
E-mail: manager@parchment.org

SCOTTISH FESTIVAL: Kalamazoo Scottish Festival Association
P.O. Box 511
Oshtemo, MI 49077

E-mail:kateboeve@gmail.com
info@kalamazooscottishfest.org



21.  Non-Modification. This Agreement may not be modified except in writing
signed by all parties. Any purported oral modification by practice shall be deemed null,
void and of no force and effect.

22,  Severability. Should any term, provision, clause, or part of this contract be
held void, illegal or unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall
only affect that term, provision, clause or part held void, illegal or unenforceable and shall
not affect in any way the validity or enforceability of any term, provision, clause or part
of this contract.

23. Integration Clause. This contract contains the entire agreement and
understanding of the parties in respect to the subject matter of this contract shall be
deemed fully integrated.

24.  Execution in Counterparts. This License Agreement may be executed in
counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute the same
instrument.

25,  Effective Date. This contract shall take force and effect on
, 2023.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this License Agreement
on the day and year first written above.

WITNESSED BY: CITY OF PARCHMENT

By: Robert D. Britigan, III
Its: Mayor

WITNESSED BY: CITY OF PARCHMENT

By: Shannon Stutz
Its: Clerk

WITNESSED BY: KALAMAZOO SCcOTTISH FESTIVAL
ASSOCIATION




By: Katherine Boeve
Its: Board Secretary



NYOIHDIAL_“ALNNOD OOZYIY 19 LNTINHOMVE 40 AL
oo DV HEDHEEETIC NI

s ~ (s) sdais spanys
: ...m&..ww.“mﬁwmﬁ_o S, ; ﬁmw SWICOJ SM@M

(a),




